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 President of the Senate President Pro Tempore 

 

February 8, 2019 

 

Secretary Kevin Thibault 

Florida Department of Transportation 

605 Suwannee Street, MS-57 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399 

 

Secretary Thibault: 

 

Thank you for District Secretary O’Reilly’s presentation to the Senate Infrastructure and Security 

Committee on February 5, 2019, regarding the Sunpass Centralized Customer Service System. The 

presentation was informative. However, during the meeting, I raised a number of questions, some of 

which were partially answered and some that remain unanswered. I am writing to bring a list of those 

questions to your attention and ask that the Department provide responses as soon as possible. 

 

1. In retrospect, are there any recommendations about what the Department could have done 

differently in the contracting process, damage provisions in the contract, or things of that nature? 

2. Were there more bidders that ultimately weren’t allowed to bid because there were changes in the 

process, during the bid process or prior to presentation, or were any of the five bidders being 

disqualified as a result of those changes? 

3. Was there ever any information provided during the bid process that this vendor was having 

problems with similar projects in other states? 

4. Were any payments made to any other vendors protesting this bid, during or following the bid 

protest process? 

5. How much did change orders (or things of that nature) to the contract as originally let add, if any, 

to the delays and, perhaps, the failure of the system to operate initially? 

6. As of the date of this letter, are there any customers still to be billed for backlogged invoices? 

7. With respect to Secretary O’Reilly’s agreement that the invoices are probably accurate, is it safe 

to say, in the public sector, the longer the period of time between a purchase or transaction and 

the point at which payment collection occurs, the greater degree of probability that uncollectible 

amounts will be higher? 

8. Who will ultimately be responsible for these uncollectible amounts? 

9. Are you aware of any provisions in the contract that would obligate a vendor to absorb the cost of 

tolls not billed to customers within a certain period of time? 

10. What other business does this vendor have with the Department, as a contractor or a 

subcontractor? 

11. Is there any provision of law or contract that cross-defaults these contracts or anything that would 

prohibit this bidder from bidding on additional contracts in the future in light of a failure like 

this? Or does it rise to that magnitude? 
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12. If you get into litigation and you want to exit this contract, are there adequate mechanisms to do 

that? Are there other vendors that could take over the contract? 

 

Questions raised by other members of the committee include: 

 

1. With respect to contractor fines, Secretary O’Reilly spoke of a 25 percent deduction from the 

vendor provided for in the contract, and the FDOT announced fines to the contractor in charge of 

the project of $800,000 after two months. That represents less than a quarter of one percent of the 

contractor’s $343 million contract. What are the details regarding the amounts that have actually 

been charged to the contractor and how will the 25 percent deduction be applied going forward? 

2. Why is this company still under contract? 

3. Isn’t it time we look for another vendor if the vendor is unable to resolve issues in a timely 

fashion? 

4. Was there a data breach that affected Sunpass users? 

 

During the presentation there was reference to system testing that was performed prior to the “Go Live” 

date that indicated that there were certain problems with the system.  Please provide information about the 

testing that was done and the resulting problems or issues that were identified as a result of the testing. 

Did these testing results indicate significant problems with system functionality and performance?  Also, 

please explain how these testing results were factored into the decision to move forward with the planned 

“Go Live” date, and describe what steps were taken to mitigate the identified problems or issues.   

 

In addition, as soon as necessary data is available, I am requesting information on historical collection 

rates compared to the collection rates experienced for all backlogged invoices from the “Go Live” date. 

 

Thank you in advance for your attention to this matter. I look forward to receiving the Department’s 

responses to these questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Senator Tom Lee 

Chairman 

 

 

 

 

 
cc: Representative Brad Drake 

 


